
NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting: COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

Date and Time: TUESDAY, 15 SEPTEMBER 2015, AT 6.00 PM*

Place: THE BRADBURY ROOM, APPLETREE COURT, 
LYNDHURST

Telephone enquiries to: Lyndhurst (023) 8028 5000
023 8028 5588 - Ask for Melanie Stephens
Email: melanie.stephens@nfdc.gov.uk

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:
*Members of the public may speak in accordance with the Council's public 
participation scheme:
(a) immediately before the meeting starts, on items within the Cabinet’s terms of 

reference which are not on the public agenda; and/or
(b) on individual items on the public agenda, when the Chairman calls that item.
Speeches may not exceed three minutes.  Anyone wishing to speak should contact 
the name and number shown above.

Dave Yates
Chief Executive

Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA
www.newforest.gov.uk

This Agenda is also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital format

AGENDA
Apologies

1.  MINUTES 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2015 as a correct record.



2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an 
agenda item.  The nature of the interest must also be specified.

Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services 
prior to the meeting.

3.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

To note any issues raised during the public participation period.

4.  SEDENTARY LIFESTYLES (Pages 1 - 8)

To consider the effects of sedentary lifestyles and how the Council can engage 
residents into healthier lifestyles and exercise.  This discussion will also include 
short videos and contributions from invited guests. 

5.  CHILD POVERTY TASK & FINISH GROUP (Pages 9 - 16)

To receive an update from the Child Poverty Task & Finish Group. 

6.  CCTV CAMERAS TASK & FINISH WORKING GROUP (Pages 17 - 18)

To agree the terms of reference for a task and finish group and appoint members to 
the group. 

7.  WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 19 - 20)

To consider the Panel’s future work programme, and make changes where 
necessary.

8.  DATES OF MEETINGS 2016/17 

The Panel is requested to fix its meeting dates for 2016/2017. The following dates 
are suggested (all Tuesdays at 6.00 p.m.):-

14 June 2016
20 September 2016
15 November 2016
17 January 2017
14 March 2017

9.  PORTFOLIO HOLDERS' UPDATES 

An opportunity for the Portfolio Holders to provide an update to the Panel on any 
issues.

10.  ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT 



To: Councillors: Councillors:

S P Davies (Chairman)
D J Russell (Vice-Chairman)
D A Britton
Mrs L D Cerasoli
I C Coombes

Ms K V Crisell
A H G Davis
Mrs P J Lovelace
N S Penman
M L White



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL – 15 SEPTEMBER 2015

SEDENTARY LIFESTYLES AND HOW THE COUNCIL CAN ENGAGE 
RESIDENTS INTO HEALTHIER LIFESTYLES/EXERCISE

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel was tasked with considering the issue 
of sedentary lifestyles and how the Council can engage residents into healthier 
lifestyles/ exercise.

1.2 The purpose of this report is to; provide members with information which helps 
understanding of the issue of sedentary lifestyles; explore the impact that they have 
on the life of the individual and the New Forest community; look at what NFDC are 
currently doing to increase participation in physical activity and what NFDC may be 
able to do to going forward to tackle the issues.

1.3 A couple of very short videos will be shown to the Panel, one which will highlight the 
issue and one that will highlight the sorts of activities that people can get involved in. 
Service users and providers will be invited to attend the Panel to assist Members to 
understand the impact of the work currently being undertaken. 

2. INTRODUCTION

2.1 A “Sedentary lifestyle” is ‘a type of lifestyle with no or irregular physical activity’, and 
the World Health Organisation now identifies “Inactivity” as the 4th leading cause of 
death worldwide.

2.2 The shift from physically demanding lifestyles, to ones where there are few physical 
challenges has occurred in just a few decades. People spend increased amounts of 
time in environments that limit physical activity. Work sites, schools, homes and 
public places are all engineered to minimise physical activity. Some examples are a 
significant increase in ‘screen time’ (TV’s, computers, phones); increase in ownership 
of personal vehicles, and a decline in manual jobs.

2.3 The World Health Organisation minimum recommendations for levels of activity are; 

 Under 5 year olds - 180 minutes per day.
 5-17 year olds – 60 minutes per day.
 Adults (18+) - 150 minutes per week. 

3. OVERVIEW

Short Video: “Designed to Move.”

3.1 Many of the leading causes of ill health in today’s society, such as coronary heart 
disease, cancer and type 2 diabetes, could be prevented if more inactive people 
were to become active.  In the UK, the incidence of non-communicable disease 
which can be attributed to physical inactivity includes:

 10.5% of coronary heart disease cases
 18.7% of colon cancer cases
 17.9% of breast cancer cases

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 13.0% of type 2 diabetes cases
 16.9% of premature all-cause mortality 

3.2 In addition to reducing premature death and the incidence of disease, participating in 
physical activity also has benefits for mental health, quality of life and wellbeing and 
maintaining independent living in older age. It can also play a key role in reducing 
health and social inequalities. As a result of this wide-reaching impact, physical 
activity has been described as the ‘best buy in public health’.

3.3 Physical inactivity also has a significant burden on healthcare costs and the 
economy. In 2006/2007 £900 million was spent in the UK on ill health related to 
physical inactivity. Furthermore, ill-health of working age individuals (aged 16-64 
years) can cost the government between £62 and £72 billion pounds and have a total 
economic impact of £103 to £129 billion each year (2007 data).

3.4 In July 2011 the Chief Medical Officers (CMOs) from England, Northern Ireland, 
Scotland and Wales launched "Start Active Stay Active"  , a joint report on physical 
activity which included guidelines for participation in physical activity across the life 
course. These guidelines provide recommendations on levels of physical activity 
which best support population level changes in health. Despite the well reported 
health and economic benefits of physical activity, levels of participation in the UK are 
currently well below the recommended levels in both children and adults; for 
example, fewer than 40% of men and fewer than 30% of women meeting the 
recommended guide lines across England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland. 

3.5 With children and young people the recommendation is for at least 1 hour of 
moderate activity per day. Nationally, only 20% of children 5-15 actual achieve this 
recommendation. 40% are inactive.

3.6 According to the “Taking Part” survey 81% of children 5-10 year old have taken part 
in sport outside of school in the previous 4 weeks, whilst 95 % of young people 11-15 
have taken part in sport inside or outside of school in the last 4 weeks.  

3.7 The biggest sports for 5-10 year olds were swimming, football, cycling, walking and 
gymnastics, whilst skateboarding has seen an increase in participation. 

3.8 The biggest sports for 11-15 year olds were football, swimming, gymnastics, 
basketball, walking and running. Skateboarding saw an increase in participation in 
this age group as well. 

3.9 Physical activity can take many forms at different stages and times an individual’s 
life. This can include free play, active travel, playing organised sport, or more informal 
versions of traditional sports, and going to the led or self led sessions at the leisure 
centre. 

4. THE LOCAL SITUATION 

4.1 According to Public Health England’s 2015 health profile for the New Forest District, 
61% of adults in the district were “Physically active”, undertaking 150 minutes of 
moderate intensity physical activity per week (this is against a national average of 
56%). According to Sport England’s Local Sport Profile, 58.4% residents do take part 
in sport at least 30 minutes once a week (1 x 30) and 19.4% do at least 30 minutes of 
sport five times a week (5x30) (above the national average of 53% and 13.8% 
respectively).

Page 2

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/start-active-stay-active-a-report-on-physical-activity-from-the-four-home-countries-chief-medical-officers
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/447730/Taking_Part_2014_15_Child_Report__Repaired_.pdf


4.2 There are significant implications for the individual in terms of their mental and 
physical health and wellbeing. Evidence has shown that symptoms of an inactive 
lifestyle include an increased risk of cardiovascular disease, diabetes, certain 
cancers, obesity, anxiety, depression and dementia. 

4.3 Public Health England HIPI indicates that if 100 % of residents took part in the 
recommended amount of physical activity it would annually prevent 119 deaths, 
including 26 new Breast Cancer cases and 21 Colorectal Cancer cases.

4.4 The cost of physical inactivity calculated by the British Heart Foundation to the New 
Forest district is £2,567,920.This is estimated to be:

 Cancer Lower GI  (eg bowel cancer) £207,821
 Breast cancer £188,440
 Diabetes £558,556
 Coronary Heart Disease £1,219,928
 Cardiovascular disease (eg stroke) £393,175

4.5 68.6% of the New Forest adult population has excess weight. The Hampshire 
Healthy Weight Strategy 2015-2019 recognises the positive impact that physical 
activity can play in tackling the issue of excess weight in children and adults and 
states one of its strategic objectives is to: Support an environment that enables 
people to make physical activity and healthy eating the easy choice.

4.6 Indications are that physical activity drops as age increases. With an above average 
representation of older people to begin with and an ageing population the 
implications on the state of the community of increased inactivity, particularly in 
younger people could be catastrophic.

4.7 Many people acknowledge that they should be more active and there is evidence that 
over 50% of adults want to do more. This includes 16% of adults that are currently 
inactive. The largest specific activity that people would like to do more of is 
‘Swimming’. 

4.8 The biggest participation activity for adults in the New Forest District was cycling, 
swimming, gym, keep fit classes, fitness and conditioning.

4.9 Physical activity participation has been linked to an increase in educational 
attainment and concentration levels. A 29% increase in numeracy levels could be 
achieved by underachieving young people taking part in sport whilst it is estimated 
that there is a return of £7.35 on investment for every £1 spent on sports for at risk 
youth through, for example, reducing antisocial behaviour.

5. UNDERSTANDING THE BARRIERS 

5.1 There are significant barriers to being more active, some real and some perceived. It 
is too simplistic to attribute this behaviour to lack of time, cost or access to facilities. 
The barriers to participation are far more complex and arise from a range of issues 
including broader societal issues, infrastructure, media messages and changes to 
health delivery at national level. 

5.2 We are continually working with the latest "insight" documents to understand better 
how to reach our target groups and encourage people to become more active. 

Page 3

http://www.sportengland.org/research/encouraging-take-up/key-influences/


6. WHAT IS BEING DONE TO ENCOURAGE ACTIVITY?

6.1 The Council is doing a lot and varied work to encourage people to become more 
active. Some of this is delivered directly but a lot is also delivered through and with 
partners. We work to reinforce the message that being physically active is a good 
thing and try to ensure that people have the opportunity to be active if they choose to. 
NFDC also run intervention schemes that aim to give people the skills and 
confidence to be more active. 

6.2 The Council operate five Health and Leisure Centres and these offer the residents an 
accessible opportunity to start leisure activities. This is done through successfully 
marketing to the wider population who may be interested in making the lifestyle 
change but also through more targeted work with sections of the community who 
need extra support to make that change. 

6.3 Acknowledging that the Council must engage with the wider sedentary population 
Leisure and Employment also work with a broad range of partners including voluntary 
sports clubs, schools, community groups, professional organisations, arts groups, 
play organisations, public health and the County Sports Partnership.  Some work is 
aimed at the whole population but most work is very targeted and the outcomes are 
about ‘quality not quantity’.

6.4 This section is divided into 6 areas; Play, Sport, Leisure, Health, Arts and Active 
Travel. The aim of this section is to inform members and provide some detail on a 
selection of specific projects.

6.4.1 Play –Play has a large part to contribute to a physically active lifestyle 
particularly within children. Evidence shows that children are engaged in 
active play less than previous generations with just 21% of children today 
regularly playing outside compared to 71% of their parents, and that this has 
a detrimental effect on future lifestyle behaviours and on wider social skills 
such problem solving and risk assessment. Leisure and Employment are 
supportive of schemes that are encouraging children to play and educating 
them and their families as to how they can interact with the natural 
environment around them.

One such scheme is the Blashford Lakes Wild Days Out play scheme. This is 
run in partnership with the Hampshire & IOW Wildlife Trust and gives young 
people a range of experiences and skills. These sessions are for those aged 
5-7 and 8-12 and give these young people the skills, appreciation and 
understanding of our local environment. It gets them outside and active a 
lifestyle that it is hoped that they will continue as they get older as they will 
have acquired these lifelong skills. Last year we ran 17 Wild Days Out and 
engaged with 294 young people.

6.4.2 Sport – Sports Clubs provide social hubs to encourage regular participation. 
Largely volunteer led organisation they provide expertise to help encourage 
more people to take up sport.  Over 25% of local residents are Sports Club 
members and over 8% of adult residents actively volunteer at a local sports 
club. Many clubs link with schools, voluntary groups and more informal 
opportunities to participate. However, recognising that not every participant 
wishes to join a sports club, the service has helped to establish sports 
sessions that are regular but less formal groups. 

“Ping!” is an Olympic Legacy scheme linked to the documentary ‘Ping- Never 
Too Old for Gold’ the project looks to engage older population in to activity 
through the sport of table tennis.  As a result of the scheme a growing number 
of older people are enjoying the social and physical benefits of table tennis. 

Page 4



Local groups have been set up to encourage people to get together regularly 
and these local groups have also taken part in a competition organised by 
Waterside Table Tennis Club. The oldest competitor at this event was a 94 
year women from Fawley.

6.4.3 Leisure - According to the Active People survey the most top 5 most popular 
physical activities for New Forest residents are ‘Cycling’, ‘ Swimming’, ‘Gym’, 
‘Keepfit’ and ‘Fitness and Conditioning’, whilst Swimming is the specific sport 
that people want to do more of the most. Our Health and Leisure centres 
therefore play a key role in providing opportunities for local residents to be 
active and provide the facilities that people identify that they would like to do 
more of.   Leisure and Employment are engaging with interventional schemes 
to try and encourage more people to take up the opportunity to participate 
schemes such as Sportivate: 

Leisure services have run a number of projects through the Sportivate 
scheme that aim to get people in to regular activity. Using the insight 
information available and connecting with the national #ThisGirlCan campaign 
a unique scheme was created with New Forest Health and Leisure Centres to 
get more young people in the age group 16-25 active. 668 people took part in 
the scheme with 480 residents continuing regular visits when the scheme 
finished. 

6.4.4 Health–Increasing the activity levels among adults who are significantly 
inactive will produce the greatest reduction in chronic disease. Therefore 
targeted work on those that struggle to participate in activity for a variety of 
reasons by working in partnership with other health professionals can have a 
major impact on the health of the community

Walking for Health is England’s largest network of health walk schemes, 
helping people across the country lead a more active lifestyle improving the 
mental and physical well-being of thousands of people. These are led walks 
led by volunteer walk leaders and are between 10-90 minutes in length. 
Walking for Health is a partnership between McMillan and The Ramblers and 
is aimed at improving the health especially for those with long term health 
conditions such as cancer and so there are a range of shorter walks to allow 
people to participate. 

New Forest District Council has coordinated the establishment of a Health 
Walks programme in the New Forest and worked with partners in the National 
Park, Hampshire County Council and Public Health to fund a Healthy Walks 
Coordinator who is based at Community First New Forest one day a week. 
This coordinator ensures the administration, monitoring and evaluation of the 
scheme is done.  In 2014 the New Forest Health Walks scheme had 105 
walks with 230 walkers achieving 1194 walk hours and saw 19 volunteer 
trained as walks leaders 18 of which also had Dementia Awareness training. 

6.4.5 Arts - Leisure and Employment services support a range of forest based arts 
organisations and they can, and do, engage with residents that would not 
seek “activity”. Forest Forge works in partnership with various homes and 
trusts to deliver projects to older residents such as “Breaking the Fall” which 
is a falls prevention programme of work.

6.4.6 Active Travel - Incorporate physical activity into daily lives is one of the best 
ways to ensure a sustained participation in activity. By replacing time spent in 
journeys by car with physically active forms of travel such as walking and 
cycling, physical activity becomes embedded in participants’ daily routines. 
Active Travel helps reduced stress levels and aerobic physical activity, like 

Page 5



walking to work, had an anti-depressant effect. More active workers have 
fewer days absent through sickness and are more productive whilst at work.  
As well as working to ensure that the necessary infrastructure in place to 
assist those wishing to commute through active travel means NFDC are also 
supporting a number of behaviour interventions and supporting those that 
wish to take up this option. One practical way that employers may help is 
through the Bicycle Purchase Scheme.  

As part of the Bicycle Purchase Scheme NFDC employees are eligible for a 
financial loan for a bicycle (plus associated equipment). As part of the cycle 
loan NFDC have negotiated a discount at a number of retailers within the 
district; however the purchase of bicycles and equipment is not restricted to 
these retail outlets. 

7. THE IMPACT

7.1 To assist Members with understanding this area of work and the impact it can have, 
the Panel have some invited guests including a leisure centre customer and 
community partners who will be available to answer any questions that members 
may have.  Officers invite members to discuss the impact current programmes are 
having on our community with officers and invited guests 

Short Video – “Do More Be More”

8. FUTURE WORK 

8.1 The Leisure and Employment service will continue to engage with our partners 
across the district including those in play, sports clubs, health and leisure facilities, 
voluntary organisation and other health professionals, amongst others and have 
identified future areas of work. These will be delivered within the current work 
programmes and budgets. Some of the work may also be cross portfolios.  

8.2 The Panel are asked to consider whether they support the work the Council is doing 
to reduce the impact of inactivity and whether they support the areas of work 
indicated as the most effective ways of achieving the outcomes of creating healthier 
communities.

8.3 Training - Leisure services will offer training workshops for volunteers across the 
district to ensure that they have the skills, confidence and competence to deliver a 
series of safe, efficient and effective physical activity schemes including Volunteer 
Walk Leader training and Leadership in Running Fitness scheme.  

8.4 Activity Referrals - Expanding our current Exercise Referral scheme to increase the 
offer for those that are not being active enough. Through working with health partners 
and motivational interviewing our Active Lifestyle staff will offer the client a choice of 
activities to become active and use technology to help them stay motivated through 
the programme. The Leisure and Employment service would also explore the 
expansion of the Junior Referral scheme.  

8.5 Project Wild Thing - Explore ways to engage with the “Project Wild Thing” that 
encourages more children to play outside. This includes linking with the National 
Park Authority and the Hampshire IOW Wildlife Trust to promote this scheme.

Page 6



8.6 Increase the number or led walks and promote the variety of self-led walks - 
Look to increase the regularity of led walks to offer residents the opportunity to 
engage in a walk at least once a week. New walks are developed in targeted areas. 
A collection of self led health walks in the communities across the district is being 
produced. 

8.7 Workplace wellness and Fit for Future - The service is staying aware of ongoing 
discussions and is ready to contribute to the findings and actions that accompany 
them. 

8.8 Active travel reward scheme - A scheme to incentivise and reward residents who 
use active travel is being developed through the Brand New Forest Loyalty card. It is 
intended to utilise technology record participants travel and allow them to case in the 
rewards at local businesses including our health and leisure centres who will also 
both promote and monitor the project.

8.9 Promotion and Marketing - Using the array of “insight” information to explore how 
to better promote “activity” to those not engaged. This includes using real people in 
our marketing material and delivering the message in new ways. 

8.10 Engaging with Technology - Increasingly technology is used by those engaged in 
activity and the Leisure and Employment services are looking to explore how to use it 
to entice others in to being active. Linking with the ASA we are looking at the 
opportunity to use new technologies to improve the swimming experience. Leisure 
and Employment are also exploring the development of a geo-caching scheme to 
encourage families to experience the outdoors.

8.11 Active Travel - Link with partners to champion the need to provide and improved the 
infrastructure around the district whilst implementing a series of interventions such as 
cycle workshops and training groups to engender a behaviour change.

8.12 Open Space – Engage with other officers to ensure the retention of current open 
space and maximisation of the use of the green open space within the district, 
especially in the built up communities, ensuring that they contribute to the wider 
activity needs of the community. 

8.13 Health & Wellbeing Board – New Forest District Council will continue to convene 
the New Forest Health & Wellbeing Board providing strategic leadership across the 
district with an action plan taking account of the local Clinical Commissioning Group 
priorities and Hampshire County Council health priorities which include ensuring 
“healthy weight in adults and children and increasing physical activity”. NFDC has 
developed a New Forest Healthy Weights Implementation Group which will look 
supporting the Hampshire Healthy Weight Strategy objectives. Objective 1 is to 
“Support an environment that enables people to make physical activity and healthy 
eating the easy choice”  through prioritising the need to “develop public health 
aspects of the planning process of major development and local development plans” 
to “provide and promote accessible outdoor spaces, including footpaths, open 
spaces and green spaces” as well as increasing the opportunity for active travel 
through walking and cycling routes

8.14 New Forest Sport & Physical Activity Alliance – NFDC convene a cross agency 
group of officers to ensure coordinated delivery of programmes to tackle the issue of 
inactivity to maximise resources and provide an increase return on investment.  

Page 7



9. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 There are no specific Equality and Diversity implications although the target groups 
for increasing activity do include those groups which may be marginalised in society 
or alienated from activity and often include targeted work in engaging with under-
represented groups such as women, disabled groups or ethnic minorities.

10. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no specific environmental implications within this report however the 
increase of active travel would align with the sustainable transport and green agenda 
that NFDC and the NPA, among others, are currently pursuing. 

11. CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are no specific crime and disorder functions as a result of this report but as 
indicated the wider social implication of increasing physical activity and using sport to 
engage with certain groups within the community can have a positive impact on 
some of the targets within the crime and disorder portfolio.

12. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 There are no specific financial implications with this report, however, the return on 
investment of increasing physical activity would be cost effective for the district in 
terms of savings in the medium to long term. 

13. RECOMMENDATIONS 

13.1 That the Panel supports the Council’s work in engaging individuals and families in 
our communities to lead more active lifestyles and continue to support targeted 
intervention with groups that are inactive; and

13.2 That the Panel supports the extent of current provision and comments on the 
possible direction of future work. 

For more information please contact
Jamie Burton
Sports Development Officer
jamie.burton@nfdc.gov.uk 

Page 8

mailto:jamie.burton@nfdc.gov.uk


1

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL: 15 SEPTEMBER 2015 

CHILD POVERTY TASK AND FINISH GROUP – INTERIM REPORT

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Task and Finish Group met in July to review the recommendations of the last 
Panel.  Having done so, it is proposed that the next meeting is after the Panel meets 
in September, in order to progress the work.  The Task and Finish Group also 
propose that there is a role for the Group to continue through to the end of the 
financial year, so as to see through the items that are being developed.

2. ITEMS FOR REVIEW

2.1 Appendix 1 is the schedule of actions as recommended at the last Panel.  Added to 
the schedule is a final column which sets out the suggested way forward with these 
items. 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 It is recommended that: 

a) The Task and Finish Group continue through to at least the March Panel 
meeting, so as to pursue the items for action; and

b) The schedule of actions, together with any amendments made at the meeting, is 
agreed.

For further information please contact:

Alan O’Sullivan,
Chairman, Child Poverty Task and Finish Group.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



2

APPENDIX 1
PREVIOUS SUGGESTIONS FOR ACTION

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
ITEM REASON HOW PORTFOLIO

TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
SUGGESTIONS FOR ACTION

1. Improvements to 
information availability 
and distribution across 
all the subjects covered 
in the workshop

Information is a core 
resource and whilst there 
is material out there, it is 
not well co-ordinated or 
presented.

Build on the work of the New Forest 
Advisory Service; Local Children’s 
Partnership and others and connect to 
NFDC sources.  Better use of mobile 
technology/ social media.

Finance and 
Efficiency; Health and 
Leisure; Housing and 
Communities

Information produced for the 
Local Children’s Partnership is a 
good starting point and this 
should be kept up to date.  (MD)

Monitor if HCC work with the 
Early Help Hub to provide local 
information on services (MD/AR)

The Council should ensure that 
the relevant officers are aware of 
key sources of information (GM) 

Arrangements should be made to 
bring an LCP representative to 
the T&FG to discuss how the 
information is made available 
across the workforce.  (MD) 

The topic of “providing 
information about services”, 
should be suggested for 
inclusion in the current liaison 
between the Early Help Hub; 
Local Childrens’ Partnership and 
Supporting Troubled Families 
Programme (AR/MD)

P
age 10



3

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
ITEM REASON HOW PORTFOLIO

TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
SUGGESTIONS FOR ACTION

2. Enable front line 
staff to identify those in 
need and signpost.

Service staff meet with 
those in need and can be 
in a position to know 
where assistance can be 
found.

There will be a need to develop 
awareness / skills and ready access to 
information. Will apply to all relevant 
services and is likely to tie into 
safeguarding and “Prevent” training. 
Adapt the older persons ‘trigger tool’ as 
an additional guide to staff in assessing 
those in need. Test staff knowledge 
through a ‘mystery’ shopper. 

All with front line 
services

Safeguarding training is 
undertaken across the Council 
and is a subject in its own right.
The T&FG supports the need for 
the updating of policy and 
training and notes the work is 
underway.  

A report back in January on 
achievements is requested. (AR)

3. NFDC employee and 
Members to be more 
aware of the cultures of 
the GRT community 
and how services might 
best be made 
accessible so as to 
ensure the best life 
chances for all children

Difficulty in matching 
needs and services 
effectively.  Changing 
arrangements amongst 
service providers 
(statutory and voluntary)

Start with training – perhaps related to 
the induction programme in the coming 
year.
Could then lead to consideration of 
addressing service delivery and 
awareness in the wider community.
Ensure that there is an officer within the 
Council with specialist knowledge of 
this Group and filter this knowledge to 
other officers.  Ensure one point of 
contact.

All Portfolios It was noted that an information 
session ahead of Council is 
being planned which was 
welcomed. (AR)

At a future session, it would be 
good to include reference to the 
Early Help Hub (AR)

HCC work in this field needs to 
be better understood.  A 
representative should be invited 
to talk to the Group about 
Hampshire’s role in links with the 
GRT in the District.  This would 
help understanding of needs and 
who might do what. (AR/MD)

P
age 11



4

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
ITEM REASON HOW PORTFOLIO

TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
SUGGESTIONS FOR ACTION

4. NFDC employees to 
be more approachable 
and more 
knowledgeable

Perceptions of the 
Council can be a barrier 
to people using services 
and getting what they 
need.  Employee 
understanding of the 
mental health impacts of 
lack of access to finance 
and/or housing 

Consider training of front line staff in 
customer skills and also specifics such 
as budget advice.
More use of social media.
Provide our customers with service 
feedback forms. 
Provide staff and members with training 
on mental health. 

All Portfolios A future Heads of Service 
discussion was noted.

T&FG to receive a report back 
after that, with any intended 
programme and intentions.  At 
the same time, more information 
on the work of the New Forest 
C&YP Emotional Wellbeing and 
Mental Health Group would be 
useful. (MD)

5. Develop a 
sustainable programme 
of ‘Community Food 
Initiatives’ to teach 
hard to reach groups 
that are living in 
poverty, socially 
isolated or have longer 
term health issues how 
to cook healthy food on 
a budget’

Making the most of 
existing groups / 
knowledge and workings.  
Avoiding duplication.

Enable awareness – officers linking up; 
supporting the operation of groups, 
possible higher profile for partnership 
section of NFDC web site.

Provide a directory of voluntary 
organisations/key providers working 
within this subject on website.

Host a yearly networking seminar 
similar to the workshop held on the 6 
Feb. 

All Portfolios Provision seems to be effective 
but for this issue it was important 
to be clear about the target 
group.

The next step is a review of what 
is happening now.  To this can 
be added what is needed.  This 
would prompt a conversation on 
whether there is a need for 
action and by whom.  (AR)

Directory is part of LCP work 
above (No1).

This should happen.  Need to 
review precise details on content 
and invites (eg more from 
Education) but a February date is 
the target. (MD)

P
age 12



5

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
ITEM REASON HOW PORTFOLIO

TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
SUGGESTIONS FOR ACTION

6. Mapping and 
understanding of 
mental health 
commissioning and 
service delivery for 
children and adults, 
particularly those with 
physical disabilities and 
special needs.

There was a lack of such 
mapping with may be 
hindering identification of 
need/take up and leading 
to the danger of 
duplication

Take this matter to the New Forest 
Health and Well Being Partnership 
Board

Health and Leisure The scale of a comprehensive 
exercise was noted.  Some work 
had been done by the LCP and 
Police and Crime Commissioner.  

The suggestion is to use what is 
currently available and the 
question asked about whether 
best use is made of it.
A report back to the T&FG as 
part of No 4 and the work of the 
New Forest C&YP Emotional 
Wellbeing and Mental Health 
Group .  (AR)

7. Provide more 
welfare surgeries

There is a need for more 
access to what can be 
complex information

Informal (tea and biscuits) approach
Make more use of community premises 
such as children centres.

Finance and 
Efficiency

In hand as part of work on 
Universal Credit.  A temporary 
resource has been employed to 
help set up surgeries / support.

There were other factors 
(including discussions about a 
Credit Union) that will be 
reported back to Panel on how 
affected families are being 
supported and this would be part 
of that.  In addition, there may be 
value in an email bulletin to 
Members (GM) 

8. Enable a relationship 
between HCC GRT 
team and New Forest 
GRT with permanent 
residence

This link was not made 
currently

Enable a link Housing and 
Communities

As discussed above (No 3)

P
age 13



6

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
ITEM REASON HOW PORTFOLIO

TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
SUGGESTIONS FOR ACTION

9. Direct referral to 
food banks.

As a direct result of 
networking at the 
workshop on 6 February, 
Housing Officers now 
have contact details of 
those running food banks 
in the district and can 
now refer people to 
these. 

Ensure that Housing Officers continue 
to be aware of contacts details of those 
running food banks in the District. 

Housing and 
Communities

It was noted that in-house 
training is underway with 
provision of information to key 
officers and more services are 
making referrals

More might be made of a two 
way relationship between NFDC 
and food banks.

The subject prompted discussion 
about the best means for 
Members to share information or 
questions on topics.  A 
discussion with the 
Communications Team and also 
within the Group may assist 
(Members). 

10. Free use of room 
hire in NFDC offices

Venues can cost third 
parties for interviews.  
This is likely to be at low 
or no cost to NFDC

Room hire function. Finance and 
Efficiency

Happening at the moment in 
response to needs when they are 
expressed and there is the 
opportunity to do so.

P
age 14



7

POSSIBLE LINES FURTHER LINES OF ENQUIRY

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
ITEM REASON HOW

TASK AND FINISH GROUP SUGGESTIONS 
FOR ACTION

11. Receive a report on Public 
Health Hampshire work with GRT 
community.

Health needs of this group are still 
apparent and there may be particular 
actions to consider.  Current work is 
being completed and will be up to date.

Presentation to 
Panel

Covered under No 3

12. Community transport – what is 
commissioned and how / /what is 
out there – joining up of need and 
provision.

Public transport is understood to be 
largely a matter of central government 
and County Council action.  Local action 
/ commissioning of community transport 
services may offer more scope.  There is 
some uncertainty as to how well 
community users and needs are 
connected to transport provision and 
commissioning.

Possible joint Task 
and Finish Group 
between Panels

It was noted that this is really challenging.  To 
assist future discussion the T&FG suggests a 
proposal is devised for further work (probably a 
joint session with representatives from Planning 
and Transportation). (MD/CE).  Some questions:

What services are there?
Is there capacity to carry more people in the 
current provision?
What is the demography of users?
Are there pre-conceptions about who the transport 
is for?
What role for Town and Parish Councils?
Is there best practice to learn from? 

13. Should NFDC funding of third 
parties make more overt 
requirements to demonstrate 
recognition of child poverty?

Demands are rising, resources are 
falling, so there is a need to make best 
use of what is available.

Panel considers if 
Portfolios should be 
asked to consider at 
all; generally or 
more specifically

The Council does not have a clear history of 
allocating funding to wider “societal or social” 
functions such as child poverty / parenting skills 
and support / loneliness in old age / domestic 
violence and so forth.  
It was not known where HCC was heading with its 
funding.
The new Corporate Plan was an opportunity to set 
out priorities, against which action can be taken.   
These were much wider questions
(Members)

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL: 15 SEPTEMBER 2015

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR A TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
CONCERING CCTV CAMERAS

1. THE ISSUE

1.1 At the June Panel meeting, Cllr Cleary, Housing & Communities Portfolio Holder, 
informed the Panel that as part of the information commissioner’s guidance on the 
regulation for CCTV, system owners have been advised to carry out impact 
assessments, analysing each camera’s performance according to the objectives of the 
system. If cameras were found to be under performing, or if their purpose has been 
served, consideration should be given as to their removal or relocation 

1.2 Alongside adhering to this advice from the Information Commissioner, the Council is 
investigating image transmission solutions, primarily due to the fact there is a high cost 
of transmitting the images around the forest using BT fibre. Undertaking an 
investigation on the performance of individual cameras is timely, as efficiencies could 
be made if unnecessary cameras were removed. Officers would then work towards a 
procurement solution, once guidance had been sought on the appropriate location of 
cameras around the district. 

2. PURPOSE

2.1 At the June Panel meeting, members agreed the exploration of this subject to be 
suitable for a Task and Finish Group.  The following terms of reference are proposed:

 Using statistics from the Police, CCTV Service and/or other sources, assess the 
performance of individual CCTV cameras located within the District. 

 Provide officers with clear guidance on which cameras should be removed, 
repositioned or remain in their current location. 

3. METHOD

3.1 It is suggested that the Task & Finish Group is formed through the usual practice of 
inviting members from the Panel in the first instance, then remaining members from 
across the Council, with a membership of up to 5 members.

The Task and Finish Group will then be supported by officers.

4. TIMESCALE

4.1 The Panel has requested a report back at the January 2016 Panel.

For Further Information Contact: Background Papers:
James Knight None
Civil Contingencies and CCTV Manager
Tel: 02380 285588
E-mail: james.knight@nfdc.gov.uk

Page 17

Agenda Item 6

mailto:james.knight@nfdc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Work Programme 2015/2016

ITEM OBJECTIVE METHOD TIMING/UPDATE 
ON PROGRESS

HOUSING 
Introductory 
Tenancies

To review the progress 
of introductory 
tenancies. 

Report to Panel January 2016

Supporting People To review the impact of 
the Supporting People 
regime. 

Report to Panel January 2016

Armed Forces 
Community 
Covenant

To review the progress 
of the Community 
Covenant.

Task & Finish Group 
Report to Panel

March 2016

Welfare Reform To review the transition 
to Universal Credit and 
impact on 
residents/tenants 

Report to Panel As and when 
appropriate

CRIME & DISORDER
CCTV Cameras To agree the terms of 

reference for a task and 
finish group and appoint 
members

Report to Panel September 2015

Community Safety 
Partnership

To fulfil the Council’s 
statutory duty

Invite representatives 
of the Community 
Safety Partnership to 
the Panel’s meeting

November 2015

Domestic Homicide To receive a report on 
the domestic homicide 
panel

Report/Presentation to 
Panel

November 2015

Integration of the 
Community 
Rehabilitation 
Company and 
National Probation 
Trust

To monitor the impact of 
the integration of these 
services  

Panel Update When appropriate

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE
Child Poverty in the 
New Forest

Task & Finish Group Interim findings 

Findings and final 
recommendations

September 2015

November 2015

HEALTH 
Progress of the 
Health & Wellbeing 
Board Action Plan

To review the progress 
of the current action 
plan

Report to Panel June 2016

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



LEISURE
Sedentary lifestyles 
and how the council 
can engage 
residents into 
healthier 
lifestyles/exercise 

Presentation by Sports 
& Play Development 
Officer

Presentation to Panel September 2015 

Community Grants To review the 
Community Grant 
applications and make 
recommendations to the 
Portfolio Holder 

Report to Panel January 2016

Task & Finish Groups

 Armed Forces Community Covenant 

 Child Poverty

 Dibden Golf Centre

 Statutory Nuisance 

 CCTV

Page 20


	Agenda
	4 Sedentary Lifestyles
	5 Child Poverty Task & Finish Group
	6 CCTV Cameras Task & Finish Working Group
	7 Work Programme

